Rugby Union

DUMIES

Learn to:

- Master the game and play to win
- Follow the laws and understand the ref's calls
- Identify key players at the World Cup
- Appreciate the history of the game

Greg Growden

Chief Rugby Correspondent for the Sydney Morning Herald

Foreword by Robbie Deans Wallabies coach and former All Blacks champion



Rugby Union FOR DUMMIES

Learn to:

- Master the game and play to win
- Follow the laws and understand the ref's calls
- Identify key players at the World Cup
- Appreciate the history of the game

Greg Growden

Chief Rugby Correspondent for the Sydney Morning Herald

Foreword by Robbie Deans Wallabies coach and former All Blacks champion



Rugby Union For Dummies[®], 2nd Australian and New Zealand Edition

Table of Contents

<u>Introduction</u>

About This Book

Conventions Used in This Book

What You're Not to Read

Foolish Assumptions

How This Book Is Organised

Part I: Rugby: Roots, Boots and All

Part II: Getting Down and Dirty

Part III: Welcome to Planet Rugby

Part IV: Following the Game: The Informed Fan

Part V: The Part of Tens

Part VI: Appendixes

Icons Used in This Book

Where to Go from Here

Part I: Rugby: Roots, Boots and All

Chapter 1: Rudimentary Rugby

The Game They Play in Heaven

```
What's in a Name
     Breaking up: Amateur rugby union and professional rugby league
     Noting the differences between the codes
 Getting It Together on the Field
     Aiming to score
     Shaping up to play
     Coaching and those tantalising tactics
 Cheering from Rugby Cloud Nine
 Rugby on the Home Field and World Stage
     Home is where you hang your rugby scarf
     Around the globe: The A to Z of rugby
     Playing the world stage
     Raising rugby's profile at the Sevens
Chapter 2: The Aim of the Game
 Getting the Measure of the Field
 <u>Understanding the Scoring System</u>
     Scoring a try
     Fouling up: Penalty tries
     <u>Taking a conversion</u>
     Drop-kicking a field goal
     Breaking the laws: Penalty goals
     Doing time
 Running Up the Ladder
 <u>Introducing the Players</u>
     Taking up position
```

<u>Playing by the laws</u>

```
Going on and off the field
```

Chapter 3: Grab Your Rugby Gear

<u>Getting It Together: The Essentials</u>

Having a ball

Looking after your feet

Selecting jerseys and shorts

Kicking in with a kicking tee

Knowing what's barred on the pitch

Protecting Your Assets

Wearing protective equipment

Avoiding serious injury

Part II: Getting Down and Dirty

<u>Chapter 4: Location, Location: Positions on the Pitch</u>

Counting Forwards and Backs

Getting In Tight with the Tight Five

Facing off in the front row

Towering over the second row

Stirring It: The Back Row of Forwards

Holding firm with the number 8

Foraging with the flankers

Getting Your Backs in a Row

Passing and pestering for profit: Halfbacks

Feeling footloose and fancy-free: The five-eighth

Focusing on centres

Running wild with the wingers

```
Roaming with the fullback
<u>Chapter 5: Laying Down the Laws</u>
 Introducing the Laws
     Finding out about the laws
     Building up your knowledge
 Observing the Offside Law
     Going offside and coming onside
     Getting penalised for going offside
     Crossing the 10 metre line
 Passing Forward
 Knocking On
 Tackling the Tackle Area
     The tackled player
     The tackler
     Tackling turn-offs
 Playing Foul
 The Referee Rules
 Recognising the Referee's Signals
 Taking Note of the Men in Charge
     Referees: Men in the middle
     Assistant referees: On the sidelines
     Video referees: In front of the screen
 Becoming a Ref or an Assistant Ref
<u>Chapter 6: Honing Your Skills</u>
```

Running Rampant

Receiving a pass on the run

```
Nifty side-stepping
   <u>Curving into the swerve</u>
   Fending off the opposition
   Going into a hit and spin
   <u>Doing the goose step</u>
Kicking Cleverly
   Punt kick/screw punt
   Drop punt
   Drop kick
   Chip kick
   Grubber kick
   Goal kicking
Passing with Panache
   Bringing tactics into play
   Spiral pass
   <u>Cut-out pass</u>
   Lob pass
   Dive pass
   Halfback pass
   Flick pass
Tackling Tough
   Making a front-on tackle
   Side-on tackle
   Tackle from behind
   Smother tackle
   Stationary tackle
```

Ankle tap
<u>Chapter 7: Breaking Down the Breakdown</u>
Roughing It in the Rucks
Attacking with the 'pick-and-go'
<u>Directing the ruck</u>
Rucking rules
Monstering in the Mauls
Attacking in a driving maul
Spinning into a rolling maul
<u>Directing the maul</u>
Mauling laws
Revitalising the Breakdown Laws
Sorting Out the Scrums
Scrummaging for position
Ready to rumble
Getting a shove on
<u>Laying down the laws of scrum</u>
Chapter 8: Leaping Lineouts: Jumping for the Ball
<u>Lining Up for a Lineout</u>
<u>Calling a lineout</u>
Locating a lineout
Forming a lineout
Throwing in the ball
Reaching for the ball
Toeing the line with lineout laws

<u>Taking Tactics Down the Line</u>

```
Starring Roles in a Lineout
     Jumping for the ball
     <u>Lifting the jumper</u>
     Winning the throw-in
Chapter 9: Talking Tactics
 Beating Your Opponent
 Making the Best Move
     Bringing on the forwards
     Coordinating strategy
     Weathering the game
 <u>Defending Devilishly</u>
     Coordinating the defence
     Blocking the advance: Defensive systems
 Attacking Artistically
     Launching an effective attack
     Breaking through
 Playing the Ten-Man Game
Chapter 10: Talented Training
 Getting Match Fit
     Warming up with a good stretch
     <u>Developing a fitness program</u>
 Tooling Up on the Cheap
 Psyching Up for a Stellar Performance
 Eating Your Way to Victory
     Choosing a balanced diet
     Taking on fuel
```

Choosing your supplements carefully

Avoiding Accidents: Easy as Falling Off a Log

Knowing how to fall when you're tackled

Playing hard helps avoid accidents

Chapter 11: All About Coaching

Grand Obsession: What Makes a Good Coach

Tackling a tough job with everything you've got

Bettering your team's best

<u>Climbing the Coaching Ladder: Official (and Unofficial) Requirements</u>

Deciding whether coaching is for you

Starting on the bottom rung

You're Not Alone: Support Staff

Assistant coach

Defence coach

Technical coaches

Managing the team

Training the team

Massaging the players: The physio

Calling the team doctor

Running after the team

Part III: Welcome to Planet Rugby

Chapter 12: The World Cup

Playing Up to the Final

Qualifying for the 2011 tournament

Winning the pool games

Breaking Through: The Teams

Winning Ways: Significant Players

Going for Gold: The Trophy

World Cup Highs and Lows

<u>Ignition</u> in the opening game

Gallic glory in Sydney

Australia wakes up to itself

Spiking the coffee

Beware low-flying aircraft

That dinner, that walkout

The World Cup from hell

<u>Introducing the World Cup 2011</u>

<u>Lining up the favourites</u>

Looking at the likely lads

Chapter 13: Rampant Rugby: The International Scene

Tracking the Tri-Nations

Going professional: The background

Playing the game

Sizing Up the Six Nations

Battling for the Bledisloe Cup

Seven-a-Side Rugby: The Famous Sevens

Commonwealth Games Rugby

Going for the Jugular: Great Rugby Rivalries

New Zealand and South Africa

Wales and England

Wales and New Zealand

```
<u>Introducing the Fields of Dreams</u>
     AMI Stadium
     Eden Park
     Ellis Park
     Lansdowne Road
     Suncorp Stadium
     Sydney Olympic Stadium
     Twickenham
Chapter 14: Rugby Below the Equator: Teams and Trophies
 All About the Stunning Super 15
     <u>Launching the concept</u>
     Winning: Players, points and pay-TV
     <u>Introducing the Super Rugby teams</u>
     Making moves to expand the tournament
 <u>Challenging Rugby in the Provinces</u>
     Sparking provincial pride: The ITM Cup and Heartland Championship
     Fighting for the Ranfurly Shield
     Running hot for the Currie Cup
Chapter 15: From Grassroots to First Grade: The Domestic Scene
 Enjoying Rugby at Every Level
 Getting Started in Junior Rugby
     Signing up with a local club
     Easing into training
     <u>Making the transition from juniors to Colts</u>
 <u>Understanding the Club System</u>
 Joining Your Local Club
```

Becoming a club player

Soaking up the atmosphere as a social member

<u>Playing Sub-District Rugby in NSW</u>

Outstanding Club Teams

Brothers (Queensland)

Eastern Suburbs (New South Wales)

Ponsonby (Auckland)

Randwick (New South Wales)

Souths (Queensland)

Sydney University (New South Wales)

<u>University of Otago (Dunedin)</u>

<u>University (Queensland)</u>

Following the Game at Famous Club Grounds

Coogee Oval (New South Wales)

Crosby Park (Queensland)

New Zealand club grounds

T G Millner Field (New South Wales)

Woollahra Oval (New South Wales)

Waking Up to Women's Rugby

Part IV: Following the Game: The Informed Fan

Chapter 16: Compulsive Viewing: Rugby on the Screen

Watching Rugby Union's Media Image Mushroom

Televising the game

<u>Viewing rugby on DVD</u>

<u>Turning On to Television Coverage</u>

Recognising the voices and faces that popularised rugby Keeping up with current TV rugby channels Tuning in to the world scene **Enjoying memorable TV insights** <u>Translating Television Gobbledegook</u> Chapter 17: Staying In Touch with Rugby News Checking the Rugby News Print in Australia and New Zealand Nosing around Aussie newspapers Thumbing through the Kiwi newspapers Scoring with Programs and Magazines Checking your program Focusing on rugby magazines Whiling Away with Websites Rugby Heaven website (Australia) Rugby Heaven website (NZ) Planet Rugby website The Australian Rugby Union website The New Zealand Rugby Union website RuggaMatrix website The Scrum website The Kiwi Lassen family website The Roar website Keo's website (South Africa) <u>Tuning into Radio</u> Bringing On Some Books Delving deep: Rugby reference and history

```
Expanding your rugby know-how
```

Reporting on pivotal rugby influences and events

Meeting the men, not just the players

Getting acquainted with club histories

Chapter 18: Spectating and Sobriquets

Finding Your Place in the Crowd

Blending In with the Crowd

Following rugby etiquette (not an oxymoron)

Dressing for the occasion

Spectating Down Under Style

Going to watch a Test match

Roaring with the rah-rahs without breaking the bank

Sounding Like a Rugby Expert

Touring Overseas with a National Side

Part V: The Part of Tens

```
Chapter 19: The Ten Greatest Wallabies
```

John Eales (1991–2001)

Mark Ella (1980–84)

David Campese (1982–96)

<u>Ken Catchpole (1961–68)</u>

Stephen Larkham (1996–2005)

<u>Trevor Allan (1946–49)</u>

<u>Tim Horan (1989–2000)</u>

<u>Tom Richards (1908–12)</u>

Dick Thornett (1961–62)

```
George Smith (2000-09)
Chapter 20: The Ten Greatest All Blacks
 Colin Meads (1957–71)
 Richie McCaw (2001–)
 Sean Fitzpatrick (1986–97)
 Jonah Lomu (1994–2002)
 Don Clarke (1956–64)
 Daniel Carter (2003–)
 Michael Jones (1987–98)
 Zinzan Brooke (1987–97)
 Wayne 'Buck' Shelford (1986–90)
 <u>George Nepia (1924–30)</u>
Chapter 21: The Ten Best Rugby Moments
 All Blacks versus the Barbarians (1973)
 Australia versus Tonga (1973)
 The 'Up the Jumper' Try (1975)
 Australia versus Scotland (1984)
 Australia versus France (1987)
 Campo's Standing Ovation (1988)
 Australia versus England (1991)
 The Greatest Trans Tasman Test of All (2000)
 John Eales says Farewell (2001)
 Australia's Kicks from Heaven (2010)
<u>Chapter 22: Ten Peculiar Facts About Rugby</u>
 Attracting the Unlikeliest of People
 <u>Playing in Extreme Weather and in Strange Locations</u>
```

<u>Injuring Themselves in Bizarre Ways</u>

Sometimes Officials Make Unofficial Calls

<u>Blundering Into Multicultural Minefields</u>

Scoring in Unorthodox Ways

The Game Must Go On: From Inanity to Caninity

If It's Going to Happen, It Happens on Tour

Brothers Like to Battle It Out Together

<u>Unlikeliest Lads Can Make It to the Top</u>

Part VI: Appendixes

<u>Appendix A: Honour Boards</u>

<u>Appendix B: Key Rugby Organisations</u>

<u>Appendix B: Glossary</u>

Rugby Union For Dummies $^{(B)}$, 2nd Australian & New Zealand Edition by Greg Growden



Rugby Union For Dummies[®], 2nd Australian & New Zealand Edition

Published by **Wiley Publishing Australia Pty Ltd**42 McDougall Street
Milton, Qld 4064

www.dummies.com

Copyright © 2011 Wiley Publishing Australia Pty Ltd

The moral rights of the author have been asserted.

National Library of Australia Cataloguing-in-Publication data:

Author: Growden, Greg

Title: Rugby Union For Dummies / Greg Growden

ISBN: 978 0 73037 656 9 (pbk.)

Notes: Includes index.

Subjects: Rugby Union football — Handbooks, manuals, etc.

Dewey Number: 796.3330202

All rights reserved. No part of this book, including interior design, cover design and icons, may be reproduced or transmitted in any form, by any means (electronic, photocopying, recording or otherwise) without the prior written permission of the Publisher. Requests to the Publisher for permission should be addressed to the Contracts & Licensing section of John Wiley & Sons Australia, Ltd, 42 McDougall Street, Milton, Qld 4064, or email auspermissions@wiley.com.

Cover image: © Getty Images/AFP/Torsten Blackwood

Typeset by diacriTech, Chennai, India

Printed in China by

Printplus Limited

10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

Limit of Liability/Disclaimer of Warranty: THE PUBLISHER AND THE AUTHOR MAKE NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THE CONTENTS OF THIS WORK AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, WARRANTIES OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. NO WARRANTY MAY BE CREATED OR EXTENDED BY SALES OR PROMOTIONAL MATERIALS. THE ADVICE AND STRATEGIES CONTAINED HEREIN MAY NOT BE SUITABLE FOR EVERY SITUATION. THIS WORK IS SOLD WITH THE UNDERSTANDING THAT THE PUBLISHER IS NOT ENGAGED IN RENDERING LEGAL, ACCOUNTING, OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. IF PROFESSIONAL ASSISTANCE IS REQUIRED, THE SERVICES OF A COMPETENT PROFESSIONAL PERSON SHOULD BE SOUGHT.

NEITHER THE PUBLISHER NOR THE AUTHOR SHALL BE LIABLE FOR DAMAGES ARISING HEREFROM. THE FACT THAT AN ORGANISATION OR WEBSITE IS REFERRED TO IN THIS WORK AS A CITATION AND/OR A POTENTIAL SOURCE OF FURTHER INFORMATION DOES NOT MEAN THAT THE AUTHOR OR THE PUBLISHER ENDORSES THE INFORMATION THE ORGANISATION OR WEBSITE MAY PROVIDE OR RECOMMENDATIONS IT MAY MAKE. FURTHER, READERS SHOULD BE AWARE THAT INTERNET WEBSITES LISTED IN THIS WORK MAY HAVE CHANGED OR DISAPPEARED BETWEEN WHEN THIS WORK WAS WRITTEN AND WHEN IT IS READ.

Trademarks: Wiley, the Wiley logo, For Dummies, the Dummies Man logo, A Reference for the Rest of Us!, The Dummies Way, Making Everything Easier, dummies.com and related trade dress are trademarks or registered trademarks of John Wiley & Sons, Inc. and/or its affiliates in the United States and other countries, and may not be used without written permission. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. Wiley Publishing Australia Pty Ltd is not associated with any product or vendor mentioned in this book.

About the Author

Greg Growden is one of Australia's best-known sportswriters. He began writing about rugby union in 1981, and since 1987 has been the chief rugby union correspondent for the *Sydney Morning Herald* and *Sun-Herald* newspapers.

Greg has covered all six World Cup tournaments, well over 250 Tests and more than 25 Wallaby overseas tours. He has reported on Tests at every major rugby venue in the world, and has written for numerous international newspapers and

magazines. He is also a regular on New Zealand and Australian television rugby shows.

Greg began his journalistic career with the *Herald* straight from school in 1978 and spent several years chasing fire engines and covering murders, before specialising in sports writing. He won numerous literary awards for his writings on cricket and AFL, before rugby became his number one pursuit.

Greg has written 12 books, including *A Wayward Genius: the Fleetwood Smith Story*, which acclaimed British author Frank Keating ranked as being among the 100 best sporting books of the 20th century. Other titles include *Gold, Mud, and Guts, The Incredible Tom Richards: Footballer, War Hero and Olympian*, and *Inside the Wallabies*.

Dedication

To Elizabeth, Anna and Angus, who have to endure the early mornings, late nights and obsessions of a sportswriting life.

Author's Acknowledgements

To the staff at the *Sydney Morning Herald* who have tried to communicate with me when I've had the head down with deadline beckoning trying to make certain that the blindside breakaway in the illustration was actually on the blindside, and wasn't instead seagulling. Only they know what all that means.

Publisher's Acknowledgements

We're proud of this book; please send us your comments through our online registration form located at http://dummies.custhelp.com.

Some of the people who helped bring this book to market include the following:

Acquisitions, Editorial and Media Development

Project Editor: Robi van Nooten, On-Track Editorial Services

Acquisitions Editor: Rebecca Crisp

Editorial Manager: Hannah Bennett

Production

Cartoons: Glenn Lumsden

Illustrator: Paul Lennon

Proofreader: Catherine Spedding

Indexer: Don Jordan, Antipodes Indexing

The author and publisher would like to thank the following copyright holders, organisations and individuals for their permission to reproduce copyright material in this book:

- Page 87: © Sport the Library/Action Photos Rugby Union
- Pages 90 and 125: © Getty Images/John Gichigi
- Page 94: © Getty Images/Jamie McDonald
- Page 99: © Sport the Library/Tom Putt
- Page 117: © Getty Images/Daniel Berehulak

- Page 131: © Getty Images/Clive Brunskill
- Pages 175, 215, 243, 282 and 285: © Sport the Library
- Page 191: © Newspix/Pat Hannagan
- Page 192: © Sport the Library/Photosport Rugby Union
- Page 314: © Peter Fenton

Every effort has been made to trace the ownership of copyright material. Information that will enable the publisher to rectify any error or omission in subsequent editions will be welcome. In such cases, please contact the Permissions Section of John Wiley & Sons Australia, Ltd.

Foreword

The 2011 season is one of the biggest the game has ever seen — with the extension of Super Rugby including an additional Australian team, alongside the seventh Rugby World Cup (in New Zealand).

Such events make 2011 an appropriate juncture for the release of *Rugby Union For Dummies, 2nd Australian & New Zealand Edition* — an excellent publication, and one to help guide you through the complex world that the modern game of rugby union can be.

As a navigator, none has greater qualifications than Greg Growden. Greg has experienced more than most coaches and players do during his lengthy career as the *Sydney Morning Herald's* chief correspondent on the game.

A constant travelling companion for the Qantas Wallabies during my time as national coach, there aren't many ports on the rugby union map that Greg hasn't experienced at some stage.

This exposure has given him a good understanding of rugby union principles and a great background knowledge of both the history of, and the characters that populate this great game.

The year ahead offers an exciting prospect, with the formation of the Melbourne Rebels providing the game with a significant boost in profile through Victoria, while also gaining Australia a valuable fifth Super Rugby outlet in which the country's playing talent can express themselves. So, to those Victorians who have purchased this publication, welcome aboard!

I trust that (armed with the information contained within these pages) you enjoy the maiden voyage of your Super Rugby

representatives along with all of the other attractions the game offers.

Of course, Super Rugby provides the entree — the annual Bledisloe Cup and Tri Nations Tests — to the year's main feast — September's Rugby World Cup.

The 2011 tournament, to be staged on the fields of New Zealand, is the culmination of four years of preparation for the players and coaches of all 20 participating teams, and promises to be the best event yet.

The 2011 World Cup is a competition that all in the host nation of New Zealand are likely to embrace. This event is set to provide an environment and atmosphere that should bring the best out of all participants, and is going to be compulsive viewing for those watching from further afield.

Enjoy the rugby. Enjoy the book.

And, most importantly, thanks for your interest and participation in what is a great game!

Robbie Deans

Qantas Wallabies head coach

Introduction

Congratulations! You have *Rugby Union For Dummies*, 2nd Australian & New Zealand Edition, in your hands, an edition written especially for those either side of the Tasman who are keen to find out all they can about one of the most exciting of sporting codes. With this book, I aim to satisfy your curiosity, fill the gaps in your knowledge and show you that rugby is a whole new, exciting world waiting to be explored.

Hundreds of thousands of people around the world are passionate about rugby union. For the uninitiated, rugby union may seem like a game from another planet, where the inhabitants speak a strange language and talk about unusual subjects such as scrums, rucks, mauls and lineouts. All these strange words, the laws that govern the game, the positions of the players on the field and what they're supposed to do can easily overwhelm the beginner.

I wrote this book so that rugby union beginners (coaches, parents, players and spectators) can get to know the game quickly and easily, without ever feeling overwhelmed or intimidated. Before long, you're going to find you're an expert on the game; the most innovative and fascinating of football codes — a code forever evolving.

About This Book

My simple aim in writing this book is to provide you with everything you want to know about rugby. All the information is here. You don't have to read this book right through from page one to the end, though, in order to make the most of it. Each chapter covers a rugby topic in itself, so you can easily dip into those chapters where I talk about the bits of the game that you don't quite understand. When you're watching a game on television, for example, and a referee's signal confuses you, just turn to the chapter that explains the referee's signals and the basic laws that govern the game.

If you want to become a player, you can easily navigate your way to the sections of most interest to you, and also take advantage of the handy hints throughout the book. Whether you want to become a referee, a club official, or simply a spectator, a chapter has been written with you in mind.

The focus is on the male game, but where appropriate, I provide relevant information for those interested in playing or watching women's rugby.

No matter where you sit on the rugby totem pole, whether you're an outright beginner or a self-adjudged expert, *Rugby Union For Dummies* has something you're likely to find interesting.

Conventions Used in This Book

To make it easier for you, *Rugby Union For Dummies* follows certain conventions. For example, to make it easier for you, every time I use a new term or an important phrase, *italics* is used and its meaning is explained.

I explain everything very, very clearly, and not in language full of rugby gobbledegook. For a quick reminder of the meanings of certain terms, you can always turn to the glossary at the back of the book.

Don't be restricted by the order in which the contents of this book appear. Flip through it, maybe starting with the chapter on the laws, where I explain the most important rules of the game. Check out the diagrams, drawings and photos, which make it easy for you to immediately understand the most important aspects of the game.

You may find that in a discussion of a particular aspect of rugby in one chapter, I refer to another aspect of the game. Whenever that happens, I tell you which chapter to turn to for more information about that other aspect. For example, when I talk about tactics, I mention player positions and tell you which chapter to turn to for more detailed information on positions.

And, to avoid confusion with any other game of footy, this book occasionally refers to the former name of 'soccer' even though the game of soccer has officially changed its name to 'football'.

What You're Not to Read

Here and there throughout this book, you see *sidebars* — text boxes that are separate from the regular content and that feature a grey background. Sidebars include information of interest, but if you choose to skip these your understanding of rugby union isn't going to suffer.

Another item you can safely skip without worrying about it are the occasional paragraphs with a Technical Stuff icon. Techminded spectators, for example, may enjoy getting to the nitty gritty, but most beginners aren't going to notice whether a rugby ball is a few grams too heavy or not.

Foolish Assumptions

Don't feel intimidated if you know nothing about rugby union. Even some players have difficulty remembering things like the laws, so never worry that you're a rugby dummy — I certainly don't think you are! Before long, you're going to feel like an expert.

You may have been watching a game and asked

- ✓ Why are all those players grabbing each other around the waist and then charging at each other like stampeding rhinos?
- ✓ Why does the referee keep waving his arms around?
- ✓ Why are the players standing in a straight line and jumping for the ball?
- Why do they keep referring to rugby people as 'rah-rahs'?
- ✓ Why is a five-eighth called a five-eighth?
- ✓ What is a ruck and what is a maul?

This book answers these questions, and many, many more. My assumption is that you basically know nothing — and we go from there.

How This Book Is Organised

This book is organised into six parts according to the famous *For Dummies* design. Each part focuses on an important part of the world of rugby.

Part I: Rugby: Roots, Boots and All

If you're totally new to rugby, this part sets the scene for you. I describe the history of the game, how it all comes together on the field, and how the popularity of rugby circles the planet. I also explain what all those lines on the pitch mean and how the scoring system works. This part ends with handy hints on how to kit yourself up for a game of rugby and how to take precautions to minimise the risk of injury.

Part II: Getting Down and Dirty

A really important chapter starts this part. I give you detailed information on the positions the players occupy and their roles. Then I introduce you to the most important laws that govern the game as well as to the officials who control the game. This part helps you to improve your skills on the field, and explains rucks, mauls, scrums and lineouts. It then moves on to an explanation of tactics before describing some of the best ways in which to get fit and stay fit for rugby. You can also find out about coaching and how to get involved in it.

Part III: Welcome to Planet Rugby

This part tells you all about the competitions, the tournaments, the teams, the players and the fields on which they play. I